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Appendix A: Early Boy Scout Troops in Surrounding 
Towns  
 

Prior to 1930, most of the first Boy Scout troops in the towns and cities were the result of 

enthusiastic boys that were eager to become Boy Scouts. They did not result from 

organized efforts of a Boy Scout council.  

 

The 8th Annual Report to Congress of the Boy Scouts of America reported that on 

December 31, 1917, four Iowa cities had first class councils: Burlington, Davenport, Des 

Moines, and Dubuque. There were 103 troops registered to these four councils, and 282 

Iowa troops that registered directly with the National Council. The Dubuque Council 

registered 7 troops and 118 Scouts. Only 2,172 of the 7,462 Iowa Scouts were registered 

through a council. The troop in Lamont, for example, was chartered directly with the 

National Office.  

 

Troops in some towns had a relatively short lifespan. The Scoutmaster was typically a 

man that had some previous experience leading boys, perhaps with a church group or the 

YMCA. Without the support of a council, the leader was often on his own in terms of 

supporting the troop. Little or no training material was available for the early Scout 

leaders, and if the town had only one or two troops, the leaders didn’t have the 

opportunity to share ideas as to what did and did not work well when handling various 

situations.  

Growth Throughout Iowa 

For geographic areas outside of what would eventually become the Northeast Iowa 

Council, troops throughout Iowa began to surface. Logically, the first troop in each town 

became Troop 1. During the early years of most Boy Scout councils, multiple troops 

existed that were Troop 1, but there was not more than one per town.  

 

The August 29, 1910 Cedar Rapids Evening Gazette reported that YMCA Boys' Work 

Secretary B. L. Dawson helps promote the Boy Scout movement locally after attending a 

YMCA boys' conference in Lake Geneva, Wisconsin. The following month, Dawson, 

along with J. M. Flanagan, published by-laws that were proposed in order to organize a 

local Scout council. By the end of 1910, Scout troops existed in Des Moines, Dubuque, 

Cedar Rapids, Fort Dodge, Oelwein, Marion, and Waterloo. 

 

By December 31, 1911, Scout troops had formed in these Iowa cities: Akron, Boone, 

Burlington, Cedar Falls, Council Bluffs, Davenport, Edgewood, Elkader, Emmetsburg, 

Fairfield, Fort Dodge, Fort Madison, Harlan, Humboldt, Keokuk, Le Mars, Manchester, 

Mapleton, Marshalltown, Mason City, Monticello, Muscatine, Mt. Pleasant, Oskaloosa, 

Pocahontas, Postville, Rolfe, Sioux City, Waucoma, and Webster City.  

 

Attorney C. W. Stanley served as Scoutmaster of a troop in Corning, Iowa that was active 

by January of 1912. Troop members were primarily of the Boy's Club that existed in the 

Methodist church. The troop grew eventually grew to have 20 Scouts.  



 

Paul Lewis Page 2 1/7/2016 

 

By July, a troop existed in Monticello. Rev. H. C. Culver and H. Carbee were adult 

leaders of the troop in Springville. In August of 1912 , a group of Scouts from Burlington 

took a bicycle trip to Washington D.C.  

 

University of Iowa law professor E. A. Wilcox was leading an effort to reorganize a troop 

in Iowa City in 1914. By March, under the leadership of Scoutmaster Rev. E. F. Clark, 

the Marion troop had approximately 50 Scouts.  

 

In 1915, Scouts from Shellsburg, Mt. Vernon, Springville, Coggan, Paris, and Alburnett  

camped for what was described as a 4-day "annual event" at Paris, along the 

Wapsipinicon River.  

Growth in Nearby Towns  

If a troop decided to charter on their own, the process was done directly with the National 

Office in New York City. Many of the early Boy Scout troops never chartered or became 

affiliated with the Dubuque Council, even if they still existed in 1916 or later when the 

Dubuque council was established.  

 

When the Dubuque Council was organized in 1917, one of the first priorities was to 

develop was a court of honor committee. This committee provided structure for boys (and 

adults) to pass rank advancement. In addition, a council could order books, awards, and 

supplies from the National Office in New York City. For adults, a council organized and 

offered encouragement and training. The council also developed program activities such 

as multi-troop contests and demonstrations, larger scale service projects, and organized 

and ran long-term summer camps.  

 

It was rare, at least in the Dubuque Council, for a troop to get “too large to handle”. Adult 

leaders of Troop 19 had that feeling in December of 1921, however. The leaders felt the 

best solution was to divide the troop of 45 Scouts into two troops. Both troops remained 

chartered by Lincoln School. Scoutmaster Ed Krumbach retained most of the original 

troop members, and retained the number of Troop 19. Assistant Scoutmaster Russell 

Daubert formed a second troop, which registered as Troop 19A.  

 

In December of 1921, Regional Committeeman Dr. Erwin Schenk reported that there 

were 15 first class councils in Iowa and two second class councils. The sum of all troops 

affiliated with one of the councils was 226. Iowa also had 276 troops that were not 

affiliated with any council. Cedar Rapids was the only city with a population of over 

20,000 that didn’t have a Boy Scout council. 

 

First class councils existed in Burlington, Clinton, Davenport, Dubuque, Des Moines, 

Fort Dodge, Fort Madison, Ottumwa, Shenandoah, Sioux City, Waterloo, Ames, Iowa 

City, Mason City, and Council Bluffs. Le Mars and Red Oak had Second Class councils.  
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Council Expands to Service to Serve Troops in Dubuque Area  

Even before the Dubuque council became an area council, there were attempts to form a 

district to help channel support to geographic areas.  

 

In June of 1921, Scout Executive Moore held a meeting to help establish East Dubuque 

as a district. This district would still be affiliated with the Dubuque Council. A primary 

benefit, according to the committee, would be that Scouts wouldn’t have to travel to 

Dubuque to pass tests for their rank advancement. The East Dubuque district committee 

could handle the entire process. Elected to the new committee was L. W. Mundhenke, 

president; Dr. Kassmeyer, vice-president; A. A. Beck, treasurer; William Courtade, 

secretary and deputy commissioner. Shortly after this district was formed, a fund drive 

netted $500 of its $700 goal for support of the East Dubuque Scouts.  

 

During the December 1922 Executive Board Meeting, the council voted whether to 

include all towns within a 50 mile radius as part of the council. The Dubuque Council, 

almost from its origin, served troops in Dubuque and East Dubuque, Illinois. The 

Dubuque Council officially became an “area” council in 1928. All troops in Allamakee, 

Clayton, Delaware, were added to the jurisdiction of the Dubuque Council.  

 

The benefit of council-affiliation to troops in surrounding towns was that they would be 

able to take advantage of training and program opportunities that would not otherwise be 

available to them. The increased service and attention, however, also meant that local 

businesses and adults would be expected to provide financial assistance for Council 

expenses. Dubuque businesses were, after all, providing financial assistance to aid boys 

in their town, not surrounding towns.   

 

When the Council expanded to serve multiple counties, the Scout Executive organized 

the council into the following districts.  

 District 1  

Troop   9 Third Presbyterian Church 

Troop 11 St. Mary’s Orphanage 

Troop 12 Sacred Heart Church 

Troop 15 First Evangelical Church 

Troop 16 Holy Trinity Church 

 

 District 2  

Troop  5 St. Luke’s M.E. Church 

Troop  6 St. Patrick’s Church 

Troop 10 Nativity Church 

 

District 3  

Troop   2 Cathedral Church 

Troop 14 East Dubuque 
Troop 18 Grandview M.E. Church 

Troop 19 Washington Junior High School 
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District 4  

Troop 1 St. John’s Lutheran Church 

Troop 3 Immanuel Church 

Troop 8 St. Mary’s Casino 

 

District 5  

Troop 25 Epworth 

Troop 29 Cascade 

Troop 37 Farley 

 

District 6  

Troop 28 Edgewood 

Troop 30 Hopkinton 

Troop 34 Manchester 

Troop 39 Earlville 

 

District 7  

Troop 26 Elkader 

Troop 27 Marquette 

Troop 32 McGregor 

Troop 36 Strawberry Point 

Troop 38 Monona 

Troop 40 Guttenberg 

 

By organizing the Council into districts, a Deputy Scout Commissioner could serve a 

group of troops. A district grouping also helped leadership facilitate competition among 

the troops within the district for such things as most advancement earned or best 

participation in events. 

 

Bellevue 

Troop 1 in Bellevue became affiliated with the Dubuque council in 1923. Troop meetings 

were conducted at the American Legion, and E. L. Berg served as Scoutmaster. John 

Hillman became Scoutmaster in 1926 when Berg moved to Milwaukee.  

Cascade  

A group of boys met at the Baptist Church on February 21, 1916 to form a Boy Scout 

troop. A guest who was present to offer his assistance with organization at this first 

meeting was A. E. Abben from Dubuque. At this first meeting, the boys elected the 

following leaders:  

 Scoutmaster:    George Craft 

 Patrol Leader:    Philip Kingsley  

 Assistant Patrol Leader:  Eugene Macomber 

 Scribe:    Harold King 
It wasn’t long before the Scouts were voting on nearly everything, perhaps because it 

seemed like the appropriate thing to do. They voted on having Tuesday night as the 

weekly meeting night, and that the meetings would be held at Woodman Hall. They voted 

to change the name of Woodman Hall to Boy Scout Hall. They agreed that dues would be 
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2 ½ cents per week, and anyone wishing to pay more could do so. When a new boy 

wanted to join the troop, the members voted on whether to accept him. After one 

meeting, the boys even took a vote to ask the Scoutmaster for “more work to do”!   

 

Troop 1 soon formed a 3-page document that included a constitution and by-laws that 

they intended to follow. Not all rules were paraphrases from the Handbook for Boys. One 

rule, for example, said that each troop member must attend church at least three Sunday’s 

per month.  

 

Agenda items for weekly meetings typically included doing a stunt, a song, jokes, a 

report on “good turns” done during the past week, and a speech by the Scoutmaster. For a 

brief period, the troop went on weekly hikes. Attendance at the weekly meetings was 

around 10 boys, somewhat equally divided between the Wolf and the Eagle patrols.  

 

The troop did a surprising number of fundraising during their brief existence. They 

collected newspaper. They even sold horseradish. Their profits allowed the troop to 

register with the National Office, to purchase materials to make signaling flags, and to 

purchase patrol flags and patrol pennants. They even ordered a 14’ x 16’ tent, complete 

with poles.  

 

Although working on Scout skills and Scout advancement seemed to be a minor part of 

their weekly meetings, the Scouts did earn some rank advancement.  After the troop had 

existed just four months, Kimble Will, Harry Fetig, Floyd Lindemann, Philip Kingsley, 

Oliver Winters, William Kauder, Eugene Macomber, and William Mundell had been 

examined by Scoutmaster Craft and a member of the Dubuque Council and became 

Second Class Scouts. 

  

By the end of March, 1917, Fetig had not only passed several of the tests for the First 

Class rank, he had earned the following merit badges: Pathfinding, Civics, Carpentry, 

Handicraft, Personal Health, Bird Study, Firemanship, Photography, Cycling, First Aid to 

Animals, and Swimming.  

 

Sometime during 1917, the troop disbanded. It was a decade before another troop was 

organized in the city.  
 

By October of 1927, the American Legion Auxiliary pushed for the formation of a Boy 

Scout troop. Mrs. F. E. Powers, president of the auxiliary, along with a committee 

selected Raymond J. Finn as Scoutmaster.  Post commander Joseph Streng of the 

American Legion fully supported the troop, and offered room at the American Legion 

building for the Scouts to hold their meetings. The first local court of honor was held in 

Cascade on February 14, 1929.  

Colesburg 

Troop 1 in Colesburg existed in 1911, and perhaps as early as 1910. The Scoutmaster was 

the town’s Methodist minister, George H. Harvey.  

 

When the Civil War Veterans of the 21st Regiment of Volunteers from Iowa held their 

19th reunion in August of 1917, Boy Scouts from Colesburg escorted the veterans at the 
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program and banquet that was given in their honor. The troop raised $36 that resulted 

from a box social held in November of this same year.  

 

Carl J. Mitzner, Scoutmaster took the troop on a 1-week camping trip in Millville in 

1920. Mitzner was known as “the Boss Woodsman” to campers at Camp Karberg during 

the 1924 camp season.  

 

In June of 1921, Scoutmaster Mitzner and members of Troop 1 hiked to Fayette to attend 

and participate in the Second Annual Northeastern Iowa Boy Scout Exposition. Scouts 

who made the trip were Otto Eppens, Harold White, Burton White, Robert Gull, Leavitt 

Bush, and Chester Shaffer, and Clark Schaffer.   

 

Delhi 

Seward Andrews served as Scoutmaster of a Troop that organized in March, 1912. His 

Assistant Scoutmaster was Jesse Sloan.  

 

Rev. Carl Skinner served as Scoutmaster in 1915.The Earlville troop joined the Delhi 

troop for a week-long camp in July of 1915. Scouts from these two towns also took a 

joint hike in November of 1916.  

 

In 1916, Skinner took the troop on a week-long camping trip at Hartwick. In October, the 

Scouts were cutting logs with the intention of building a log cabin to serve as their 

headquarters. The following summer, Scoutmaster Skinner took the troop camping for 

two weeks at a location near Maquoketa.  

 

The Ladies Relief Corps presented the troop with a U.S. flag in April of 1917. Rev. 

Prescott was the Scout leader for 11 Scouts that went camping in August of 1918.  

Dyersville   

 

Earlville  

Rev. Carl Skinner spent a week camping with Scouts from Earlville and Delhi in July of 

1915.  

 

Earlville Scouts participated in the 1918 Memorial Day parade. Scoutmaster C.R. Rhodes 

took the Scouts on a week-long camping trip along Plum Creek in August of 1918.  

 

Troop 39 was chartered in 1929 by the Earlville Commercial Club.  Stuart E. Johnson 

was the Scoutmaster of this new troop, which registered 14 Boy Scouts. Thirteen of these 

Scouts attended the formal dedication ceremony of Camp Burton.  

 

Scouts and leaders from both Earlville and Hopkinton received badges at the November, 

1929 monthly Court of Honor for District 6 (Delaware County). In addition to Scout 

Executive Harold Baker, and chairman Fred Hermann, 12 other district officials were on 

hand for the presentation as part of the court of awards.  
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East Dubuque, Illinois  

Walter Gunn identified East Dubuque on the first Dubuque Council charter that he 

completed as Scout Executive, which was for the year 1918.  

 

In the early 1920’s William Courtade served as Deputy Commissioner for the two troops 

in East Dubuque in addition to serving as Scoutmaster. Courtade even served as Camp 

Director for Camp Karberg during the 1924 summer camp season. 

 

When East Dubuque had to “start over” by forming Troop 1 in November, 1925, William 

Courtade once again volunteered to serve as Scoutmaster. The original members in this 

new troop were Eugene Hessling, A. Rieder, H. Stewart, Charlie Courtade, William 

Jansen, H. Accola, and C. Lang.   

 

Scoutmaster R. T. Steward chartered Troop 14 in April of 1929 with the Dubuque Area 

Council. Other leadership involved with this troop reorganization effort were S. M. 

Graham, M. Y. Graham, and E. C. Hughes.  

Edgewood  

Scoutmaster Alva J. Rhines and Rev. J. W. Turner provided leadership to a troop that 

originated in October of 1911 and met at the Methodist church. By December, the troop 

had 15 Scouts that were organized into two patrols.  

 

A 1912 camping trip by the Scouts was held at Newberry Springs. The troop still met 

actively at least through 1913. The troop defeated a Scout troop from Greeley in a 

baseball game in May of 1913. Scoutmaster Fern Sharp camped with the troop in August 

of 1915. In August of 1916, the troop camped at Bixby's Park.  

 

A Scout troop in Strawberry Point met at the Congregational Church in 1921. By 

December of this same year, Carl Mitzner was serving as Scoutmaster of the Edgewood 

troop.  

 

Troop 28 hosted the District 6 Court of Honor in December, 1929 at the Edgewood High 

School auditorium. Fifty-one boys received an award during the ceremony. Fred I. Smith 

served as the first Scoutmaster of the troop.  
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 Figure. 1924 Edgewood troop. Howard Stalnaker is in the center of the back row.  

 

Elkader  

Professor (and Scoutmaster) Robert Rienow took 25 members of his Boy Scout troop on 

a 2-week camping trip on an island in the Mississippi River near Guttenberg. The troop 

hiked over 20 miles on August 6, 1911 to reach their destination and ultimate camp site.  
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Figure. Troop 26 Scouts (twins) Ross and Harry Powell, shown in 1930. 

Epworth  

After a visit by new Scout Executive Gunn, Epworth formed a troop of 16 Scouts in July, 

1917. Mr. Gilbert was the Scoutmaster.  

Farley 

A recently organized troop in Farley was reported in the January 28, 1928 Telegraph 

Herald. Scouts in Troop 37 were John Gibbs, John Fox, John Smith, Vaughn Walter, C. 

P. Georgen, Thomas Wilkins, Melvin Denning, Donald Denning, and Raymond Lester. 

Reverend C. L. Oelfke served as Scoutmaster.  

Galena, Illinois   

A Scout troop existed in Galena, Illinois in 1910. In January of 1911, when the High 

School Athletic Association rented the fourth floor of the Linenfelser building for 

basketball games, the newly organized Boy Scouts were also allowed to use the space for 

a meeting room. (The Knights of Columbus had previously the hall but had moved into 

the Slattery building, which allowed for a facility for youth in the city of Galena.) 

 

By April of 1911, the Scouts sold tickets to an "entertainment performance" they were 

conducting at the Turner Opera House. Proceeds from the ticket sales were used to buy 
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Scout uniforms for troop members in time for the parade on Ulysses S. Grant's birthday. 

Local businessmen helped to raise funds in late July in order to send Scouts from the 

Galena troop to August 4 "field day" activities in Fenimore, Wisconsin.   

 

Whether the troop continuously existed is unknown, but in December of 1916, Galena 

Boy Scouts hiked to Dubuque during one of their outings.   

 

J. B. Waterman, Scoutmaster of Troop 1 in Galena, Illinois, sent a letter to the Dubuque 

Council headquarters in May, 1924 asking if they could be affiliated with the council. 

The Scouts participated in many council-sponsored activities, attended summer camp 

with Dubuque scouts in 1924-26, and in fact, often won inter-troop events sponsored by 

the Dubuque Council. For several periods, the troop kept the President’s Cup trophy in 

their meeting room at Harris Hall. The trophy was a prize awarded by the Dubuque 

Council for the troop who had earned the most points during the past 3 months. A troop 

earned points for such things as passing tests for rank advancement, participation in 

activities, and so on.   

 

A second troop in Galena was organized in September, 1926, with the assistance of 

current Scoutmaster J. B. Waterman. Waterman became Deputy Scout Commissioner of 

the Galena District of the Dubuque Council. His two assistant Scoutmasters would 

assume leadership of the existing and the new troops: C. C. Potter became Scoutmaster of 

Troop 1, and William Grimm became Scoutmaster of Troop 2.  

 

The Galena troops chartered with the U.S. Grant Council in the spring of 1927.  
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Figure. 1925 troop charter, page 1 
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Figure. 1925 troop charter, page 2 
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Figure. 1925 troop charter, page 3 
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Figure. 1925 troop charter, page 4 
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Guttenberg 

Troop 40 was organized in November of 1929. The troop was  part of District 7 in 1928.  

Hopkinton   

The first troop was organized in 1915, and became well known for their 20+ member Boy 

Scout band.  It was this band that influenced Scouts in Dubuque to form a Boy Scout 

band. The Hopkinton Band received many requests, and performed at a Rural School 

Picnic and 8th Grade Graduation, Delhi's Dairy Day Celebration, 4th of July parades, and 

the Dubuque Sunday School parade. The band performed weekly concerts during the 

summer of 1921.  

 

This troop also apparently had some baseball players, for in October of 1919, they beat a 

town team of former baseball players.  

 

In May, 1923, Scout Executive E. B. Moore helped to re-organize the troop and have it 

affiliated with the Dubuque Council. John Clarke, a member of the Hopkinton High 

School faculty, served as Scoutmaster. The troop band leader was C. C. Morgan. C. S. 

Keith served as drill master. The following businessmen served on the troop committee: 

Harry L. Main, Will R. Reeve, N. A. Gearhart, C. C. Morgan, and Harlan Williamson.  

 

The 1927 Troop charter reflected an increase in adult leadership. Fred Pierce was 

Scoutmaster, and Robert Gearhart and Gilbert French served as Assistant Scoutmasters.  

Troop committee members were J. L. Statler, E.V. Laughlin, H. L. Main, E. M. Kniker, 

N. A. Gearhart, and W. R. Reeve. Scouts, all of whom had earned the Tenderfoot rank, 

included Forrest Billings, Ralph Brooks, Lyle E. Brown, Herbert Bryan, W. Clark 

DeShaw, Wayne Fear, Louis H. Gaddie, Raymond B. Lewis, Raymond L. Maroff, Robert 

McDonald, Donald D. Smith, Thomas Tibbitts, and Raymond J. Wallace.  

Manchester   

At least one Boy Scout troop existed and was available to boys in Manchester from 1911 

at least through 1922. 

 

In March of 1911 a 35-member Scout troop was organized and met at the First Methodist 

Episcopal Church. Scouts from this troop would receive some publicity later that August.  

A story reported in multiple newspapers throughout Iowa, including The Manchester 

Press and the Des Moines Tribune reported that the Boy Scout troop discovered a cave 

northwest of the city of Manchester. The cave was on the Truman Smith farm, above 

Lindsey bridge. The boys used a bicycle lamp to explore the 150-foot cave. The Scouts 

learned that the cave had 14 separate caverns, each large enough for 6-8 people to explore 

at the same time.  

 

Rev. Geo H. Harvey organized a troop of Scouts in October of 1911. In June of 1912, 

Scoutmaster Harvey took his troop camping for a week on an island in the Mississippi 

River above Guttenberg. The troop hiked to the camp site and back to Manchester 

following the week-long camp.  
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Ray Wells, George Lyman, and Archie Le Clere, all members of Troop 1, traveled to 

Cedar Rapids in November of 1911 to attend a meeting concerning the Boy Scout 

movement.  

 

In April, 1912, Rev. J. F. Black served as Scoutmaster of Troop 1, chartered by the 

Methodist Church. In May, a ventriloquist entertained the Scouts at one of their meetings. 

The Scouts also marched in the Memorial Day parade. The Troop 1 travelled in May of 

1912 to Winthrop to play a baseball game against the Winthrop Scout troop. In August, 

Scoutmaster Rev. J. F. Black spent a week camping with nine Scouts from the troop at 

the ice caves near Edgewood. Black's troop hosted a "basket social" for Scouts and their 

"lady friends" in April of 1913 at the G.A.R. Hall.  

 

The Scouts, Women's Relief Corps, and G.A.R. attended the Methodist Church on 

February 15, 1914 to hear the message "Completing Lincoln's Work". In February of 

1915 the Scouts held social events to commemorate the anniversary of the Boy Scouts of 

America. 

 

Members who attended the 7:30 p.m. worship service at the Congregational Church on 

March 14, 1915 received presentations by several Boy Scouts.  
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Figure: Notice in the March 10, 1915 Manchester Democrat  

 

Topics presented by the Scouts: 

 

 Norman Kaster:  Origin of the Boy Scout Movement 

 Darrell Allman:  Scouts' Activities 

 Mesars, Miller, and Klaus: Application of Scout Principles and Outline  

     of Scout Work 

 James Fickle:   Qualifications for Scouts 

 Robert Hutchinson:  History of U.S. Flag  

 Lloyd Grommon:  First Aid Work 

 H. R. Langridge:  Morse Code and Mind Development 

 Chester Tousley:  Our Motto: Do a Good Turn Daily 

 Rev. W. J. Suckow:  Needs of the Future   

 

The Troop was assisted with a similar patriotic service at the church in June of 1917. At 

that service, Robert Hutchinson spoke on the work of the Boy Scouts in war times.  
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Scouts from Independence, Iowa completed a relay race in May of 1915 where the Scouts 

brought a "message" from their mayor to Manchester mayor C.E. Richardson. When the 

Independence Scouts arrived in Manchester, they were met by Manchester Scoutmaster 

Rev. C. K. Hudson, members of his troop, and Mayor Richardson.  

 

By 1916, Manchester had at least two troops. Rev. Ensign served as Scoutmaster of 

Troop 2, which included the following members: Harvey Atkinson, Ray Mcukimen, Will 

Roe, Carl Reisner, Lucien Rann, Hassell Munson, Colin Marshall, Harvey Atkinson, 

Eugene Ellis, Dewey Howick, Clyde Lusk, George Dunlop, Ray Phelps, Lawrence 

Dennis, Stanley Klaus, Roy Pinch, and Henry Munson.  

 

Scoutmaster L. Platt took his troop camping in August of 1916.  

 

Frank Keiser's "The Corner Store" ran ads as being The Official Headquarters for Boy 

Scout uniforms during 1917.  

 

Boy Scouts from the Dubuque Council camped near Manchester during 1917 – 1919.  

Manchester Boy Scouts did not participate. Camp Quaker Mills, as it was known, was 

organized and ran by Scout Executive Walter Gunn. It is unlikely that Gunn would turn 

any boys away. However, it was primarily Dubuque businessmen who funded Gunn’s 

salary, and at the time the Scouts in Manchester were not affiliated with Scouts from the 

Dubuque Council.  

 

At least one of the Manchester troops camped at Backbone during August of 1917.  

 

The Boy Scouts and the Camp Fire Girls held a joint sleighing party in January of 1918.  

 

W. J. Rowley was Scoutmaster of one of the Manchester troops in February of 1918. In 

March, his troop sold over $200.00 of war stamps. Scouts who participated in this 

campaign included Sammie Carter, Merwin Belknap, Irvin Martin, Verle Millis, Shirley 

Hopkins, David Gearhart, Dale Moore, Alfred Pierce, Harold Appleby, Doran Beitz, 

Donald Wilson, and Paul Payne.  

 

Scouts Harold Hickox and Clair Klaus carried on to a stage a service flag that was 

dedicated at the Methodist Church on April 10, 1918. Stars were pinned on the flag to 

represent each person who had been a church member and/or Sunday School, and was 

now in one of the branches of service. The flag was acquired with funds raised entirely 

by the Boy Scouts.  

 

A discussion topic at the February, 1920 Commercial Club meeting was whether to hire a 

paid Scout Master (presumably a Scout Executive, and thus make Manchester a First 

Class council). Superintendent J.S. Hilliard posed the question. Scoutmaster L.L. Platt 

discussed the existing Boy Scout work being done in the city, and asked the Commercial 

Club for support. A committee of Superintendent J.S. Hilliard, E.M. Carlock, and Judge 

George W. Dunham was appointed to research the issue. No action resulted from this 

committee, however.  
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The Boy Scouts did participate in Memorial Day services, held at the cemetery, during 

May of 1921.  

 

Troop 4 spent a week camping at Backbone during August of 1921. Scouts who attended 

were Harry Tubbs, Edward Wolcott, Everett Ludley, Myron Allen, John Mitch, and 

Donald Malvern. Tom T. Norris provided leadership to the troop during camp. During 

this same timeframe, L. L. Platt took his troop to Backbone Park.  

 

With the assistance of the Rotary Club and Dr. J. I. Jones, president of the Manchester 

Rotary Club, a site was purchased for Scouts to use as their permanent camp site by 

Scouts from the local troop. August 25-27, 1926 was the first time the site was used by 

the Scouts for a camp session.  

 

Ray Short, the Field Scout Commissioner for Iowa, met with adult leaders in January of 

1920 but was unsuccessful in attempting to form a county council that would include the 

city of Manchester. It’s likely that the leaders were either unwilling, or felt they were 

unable to support a paid Scout Executive to help administer a program that they were 

already providing. At the time of his visit, Short noted that 12 councils in the Midwest 

were currently searching for Scout Executives.   

 

Scouts from Manchester would continue to register with the National Office until 

October of 1928. At this time, the Dubuque Council became an “area” council.  Scout 

Executive Harold Baker formalized plans to include Delaware County Scout troops as 

part of the Dubuque Area Council. Baker also appointed Loren L. Platt from Manchester 

as Deputy Scout Commissioner in charge of Manchester troops. Hawkeye Scouting, 

published by Robert Chapel of Manchester, was the official publication of Scouting for 

Delaware County.   
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 Figure. The Scout Pace was a monthly, 4-page newsletter of the Dubuque Area 

Council for Scouts and Scout leaders. It was first published in June of 1929. The first 

editor was Robert Chapel of Manchester.  
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Fgure: The Scout Pace, page 4 
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McGregor  

Scoutmaster Raymond Sullivan provided leadership to a troop of 28 Scouts in McGregor 

in March of 1917. Some of their first activities were practicing military drills.  

 

In early April, the troop had a new Scoutmaster: P. Schumacher. Twice the Scouts 

assisted the fire department in handling fires. They also performed clean-up and raking at 

the public square.  

 

At the end of April, the Scouts hiked to Wisconsin State Park and visited the camp of 17 

soldiers who were stationed at the Burlington Railway bridge at the mouth of the 

Wisconsin River.  

 

Civic service wasn’t the only activities that Schumacher had his troop involved in. By 

early May, each Scout had his own garden, thanks to W. Hagensick, who allowed the 

Boy Scouts to use two acres of land on his farm.  This allowed the boys to participate in 

the national  “every Scout to Feed a Soldier” campaign. 

 

Also in March, the troop held a food sale as a fundraising activity. They were thrilled 

with the success of the event. Over $20.00 was raised, and it allowed them to achieve 

their goal and purchase their troop flag from the National Office. The Community 

Welfare Ladies supplemented this by donating an American flag to the troop.  
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Figure. 1922 troop charter, page 1 
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Figure. 1922 troop charter, page 2 
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Figure. 1922 troop charter, page 3 
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Figure. 1922 troop charter, page 4 
 

In March, 1923, several 2
nd

 Class Scouts went to the YMCA in Dubuque and successfully 

passed their First Class swimming tests. By May of 1923, Troop 1 had 10 First Class 

Scouts, 7 Second Class Scouts, and 12 Tenderfoot Scouts, with a total of 29 on the troop 

roster.  
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Scouts assembled on Mothers Day in 1923 and raised the city flag. At the following troop 

meeting, Earl B. Moore, the Scout Executive of the Dubuque Council, came to McGregor 

and presented the troop with a President Harding streamer that the troop had earned. 

 

Scoutmaster Harvey Haltmeyer took Scouts from the troop on a 2-week camping trip, 

beginning July 15, 1923. Their destination was 7 miles South of McGregor at 

“Wyalusing slough”. Fourteen boys stayed the entire two weeks, and 10 stayed for a 

portion of the camp.  During their “summer camp” the Scouts passed a total of 15 Scout 

tests. Melvin Mehsling earned his First Class rank.  

 

By March of 1925, the troop had 30 registered Scouts on the roster.  

 

The October 18, 1923 North Iowa Times reported that John L. Larson received a 

certificate of award for lifesaving from Daniel Carter Beard, the National Scout 

Commissioner. He was also mentioned in the nationally-distributed 1925 Boy Scout 

Diary.  

 

In early 1924, the City of McGregor turned over their large American flag to the Scout 

troop. The troop accepted responsibility to display it at all legal holidays.  

 

A 1924 photo of the troop members, complete in uniform, appeared in the June 18, 1970 

North Iowa Times. Included in the photo was Richard Meyers, John Reynolds, Raymond 

Sires, Fred Edgar, Charles Bachtell, Elliot Boyle, Kenneth Durr, Clarence Neimeyer, 

John Jones, John Sloane, John Larson, Marion Edgar, Walter Hogan, Carleton Sloane, 

Toots Larson, Bob Bergman, Rex Richards, Melvin Mehsling, Baldwin Moe, Lewis 

Moody, and Scoutmaster Harvey Haltmeyer.   

 

Troop 1, under the leadership of Scoutmaster Harvey Haltmeyer, earned 2
nd

 place honors 

at the 6
th

 Annual Northeast Iowa Scout Roundup, held at Cresco, Iowa from June 10-12. 

Scouts competed in the following events: knot tying, staff throwing, semaphore signaling, 

Morse signaling, troop stunt, troop inspection, tent pitching, troop maneuvering, bugling, 

fire by friction, Scout pace, camp pitching, wood chopping, patrol signal tower race, 

rescue race, first aid, parade and review, speed swimming, diving, life saving, 

engineering, water boiling, cooking, wall scaling, and exhibits.  

 

By October, Ralph Horning became a Life Scout in October, 1925. Two months later 

Carleton Sloane was also awarded the same rank. They were the first Scouts from 

McGregor to earn the Life rank.  
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Figure. 1929 Registration Card, front 

 

 
Figure. 1929 Registration Card, back. Scout Executive Harold Baker's signature is on 

the card.  

 

 

Monona  

The M. E. Sunday School sponsored Troop 1 from June, 1917 through June, 1920, from 

April 1921 through April, 1922, and from April, 1923 through April, 1925. 

 

The Commercial Club sponsored Troop 38 from 1927 through March, 1931. Troop 38 re-

registered in April of 1929 with the Dubuque Area Council. Chartered by the 

Commercial Club, the troop registered 22 boys. Rev. H. E. Morrow served as 
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Scoutmaster, and Roy Berg served as the Assistant Scoutmaster. Berg, Pastor of the 

Evangelical Church, served as Scoutmaster from 1930 through 1931. 

 

Another troop, sponsored by a Group of Citizens, was registered from March, 1939 

through March, 1944. The Churches of Monona sponsored the troop from October, 1944 

to April, 1949. A Group of Citizens sponsored a troop from March, 1951 through March, 

1956.  

New Diggins, Wisconsin 

Clinton Palmer, a former member of Troop 1 in Dubuque, helped to organize the first 

troop in New Diggins, Wisconsin. Oswald S. Massey was the Scoutmaster of the New 

Diggins Troop 1, which registered 16 Scouts when it became affiliated with the Dubuque 

Council in March, 1924. It participated with Dubuque Council activities for nearly two 

years.  

 

Zwingle   

A significant project that the Boy Scouts of America participated in during World War I 

was selling Liberty Bonds. The Honorary President of the Boy Scouts of America, 

Woodrow Wilson, addressed a letter to all Boy Scouts dated May 17, 1917, asking to 

secure Liberty Loan subscriptions. 

 

Nationally, Scouts sold subscriptions in all five of the Liberty Loan campaigns. During 

the second and third campaigns, the President of the United States, through the Women’s 

Liberty Loan Committee, awarded a “President’s Flag” to one troop in each state. The 

flag was awarded to the troop who sold the largest number of bonds in proportion to their 

troop enrollment. Following the third Liberty Loan campaign, which lasted from April 25 

– May 5, 1918, Troop 1 from Zwingle was awarded the President’s Flag for the state of 

Iowa.    

 

A troop was affiliated with the Dubuque Council in 1920 and 1921.  


